
Public Safety Committee  
January 6, 2014 

Page 1 of 4 

TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND 
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
Date:  January 6, 2014                                             Time: 10:00 a.m. 
 
 
Members Present: Marc A. Grant, Chairman; John J. McCann and Bill Harkins, Council 

Members  
 
Members Absent: None 
 

Town Staff Present: Greg DeLoach, Assistant Town Manager; Scott Liggett, Director of Public 
Projects & Facilities/Chief Engineer; Lavarn Lucas, Fire Chief; Brian 
Hulbert, Staff Attorney; Julian Walls, Facilities Manager; Jayme Lopko, 
Senior Planner; Susan Simmons, Director of Finance; and Lynn 
Buchman, Administrative Assistant 

Others Present: Kim Likins and George Williams, Council Members; Eleanor O’Key, 
Lowcountry Inside Track 

Media Present: None 
 

 
1. Call to Order  
2. Freedom of Information Act Compliance 
Public notification of this meeting has been published, posted, and mailed in compliance with the 
Freedom of Information Act and the Town of Hilton Head Island requirements. 

3.  Approval of Minutes 
a. Regular Public Safety Committee Meeting of November 4, 2013 

A motion to approve the minutes of the November 4, 2013 meeting of the Public Safety Committee 
was made by Mr. Harkins and seconded by Mr. McCann. The motion was approved by a vote of 3-0.  

4. Unfinished Business    
a.  Yard Debris Removal Options 

Greg DeLoach, Assistant Town Manager, announced that before the options are discussed, he would 
like the Committee’s permission for the Staff Attorney to review with them the process of 
identification of individuals and how public funds can and cannot be used. 

Brian Hulbert, Staff Attorney, reviewed the legal issues surrounding a yard debris collection 
program.  Legal concerns he identified during his research included the requirement that public 
money must be expended for public purpose.  He noted that the SC Supreme Court had determined 
that all monies coming into the Town are considered public money. He cautioned that any program 
developed that spends public money must benefit the many and not the few.   

 



Public Safety Committee  
January 6, 2014 

Page 2 of 4 

Chairman Grant and Mr. Hulbert discussed the issues involved in an income based eligibility 
program.  Mr. Hulbert indicated while there are precedents for such Federal and State programs, his 
concern is that while the collection of garbage and debris is a service that the Town can provide, any 
such service must be provided equally to all taxpayers without preference, or a fee should be charged 
to receive the service.  He did indicate that the Town Attorney, Gregg Alford, had given a differing 
opinion that it may be permissible to have an income eligible program.  Mr. Hulbert disagreed with 
that opinion, and noted a successful legal challenge could result in penalties. 

Noting the difference of opinion, Mr. McCann questioned if a suggestion was being made for 
postponement of a decision until the legal issues are resolved.  Mr. Hulbert indicated he was not 
making a recommendation, but only expressing legal concerns that the Committee should be aware 
of before deciding on a course of action that might subject the Town to a legal challenge.  He noted 
he had no such legal concerns as to Option 1, which makes the program available to the entire Town, 
and to Option 4, which does not involve expenditure of public funds.  In response to Mr. Harkins’ 
inquiry, Mr. Hulbert confirmed that a program available to the entire Island on any Town owned 
property would not raise legal concerns, or if the Town made Town property available occasionally 
for use by a non-profit or association for collection of debris,  if no public funds were utilized. 

Mr. DeLoach outlined the efforts that had been undertaken by Jayme Lopko, Senior Planner, and 
Julian Walls, Facilities Manager, in meetings with several Ward representatives.  He noted the 
results of the meetings, as well as the public education efforts undertaken after adoption of the 
Ordinance banning open burning, were all set forth in the Memo included in the agenda packet. 

Mr. DeLoach briefly outlined Option 4, which combined the public education effort with the 
suggestion the Committee made earlier to develop a community-based resolution.  He noted the 
Community Foundation of the Lowcountry has provided some additional ideas to be considered with 
Option 4, including approaching non-profit organizations, posting volunteer opportunities on the 
website for Community Foundation of the Lowcountry, enlisting the aid of local construction and 
landscaping companies, and an expansion of the United Way Day of Caring. 

Mr. DeLoach noted that the pros and cons of each Option were outlined fully in the Memo, and 
Town Staff was available to answer any questions.  When asked by Mr. Harkins for Staff 
recommendation, Mr. DeLoach noted that this is purely a policy matter for Town Council, but 
Option 4 would be Staff’s recommendation.  With the Town operating in the role as a catalyst, as 
requested by Town Council, and working with community-based programs, he explained that the 
Town Staff would attempt to fashion an island-wide program for the spring and fall seasons.   

The Committee members and Mr. DeLoach discussed certain specifics about Option 4, including 
costs that would be borne by the non- profit and/or funds raised in the community.  Mr. DeLoach 
clarified for Mr. Harkins that Option 4 would be tested and evaluated for 1 year, with the public 
education effort continuing, concurrent with seeking to engage a non-profit organization to take the 
lead in establishing a program by spring.   

Chairman Grant asked for public comment.   

Dot Law, President of the Marshland/Chaplin/Gardner POA, stated the position of the POA was to 
return to a policy of fining those who are violating the burning regulations, which she noted was not 
a huge problem, rather than turning to non-profits or Ward 1 to pay for a perceived problem. 



Public Safety Committee  
January 6, 2014 

Page 3 of 4 

Charles Young, III, Operations Manager for Native Island Business and Community Affairs 
Association, stated his agreement there was no big problem with open burning, and citizens should 
be allowed to continue to burn with fines imposed for non-compliance with the regulations. 

Thomas Curtis Barnwell, III, of the Stoney/Chaplin/Wildhorse/Gumtree Road POA, stated there 
were many who could not attend this morning’s meeting, and suggested further meetings with the 
community.  He noted their total disagreement with the ban on yard debris burning, which practice 
has occurred for generations.  He also noted that owners of larger tracts of land need the ability to 
burn tree debris from storms. 

Perry White, a resident of Beach City Road in Ward 6, cited the history of unequal services provided 
to citizens of the Town.  He suggested that if the Town could not provide a needed service to its 
citizens for removal of yard debris, then it should get rid of the ordinance creating the situation.  

Thomas C. Barnwell, Jr. expressed various concerns, including the timing for a solution to replace 
the burning option, whether monitoring is in place for citations or tickets issued for burning since the 
ban, and the fact that older citizens are unable to remove their yard debris and have no other options 
than burning.  He supported the idea of legally re-adjusting the law to allow burning. 

Louis Rivers, representing the Baygall POA, added his support to a return to burning yard debris, 
and asked for reconsideration of the Ordinance banning such burning. 

Irvin Campbell, President of the Spanish Wells/Jonesville POA, agreed with the prior comments, 
and noted it is time for the Town to do what is right for all.  He recommended reconsidering and 
repealing the burning ban Ordinance, and enforcing the law instead of changing it. 

There were no further public comments.  Further discussion ensued among the Committee members 
and Mr. DeLoach concerning possible changes to Option 4 to make the program available to all 
Island residents with funding provided by the Town.  Mr. DeLoach also clarified for Curtis Barnwell 
that the burning ban Ordinance does allow for open burning by special permit in exceptional 
circumstances such as natural disaster, windstorms, hurricane, and tornadoes. 

Each Committee member stated their support for Option 4 with funding provided by the Town, and 
each stated their positions and reasoning leading to such decisions.  Mr. McCann also suggested that 
meetings concerning this issue be scheduled for 6:00 PM rather than 4:00 PM so that working 
citizens could attend and voice their opinions. 

Chairman Grant stated while open burning has been banned, the Council is committed to find a way 
to dispose of yard debris that will not create a burden to those who cannot afford to pay or for the 
elderly.  He asked for his constituents to continue to work with the Committee and Council to find 
such a solution, and that efforts be made to provide Town funding.  Following discussions between 
Chairman Grant and Mr. Harkins, a motion that the Committee recommend for consideration by 
Town Council that Option 4 be adopted on a 1-year basis with funding provided by the Town was 
made by Chairman Grant and seconded by Mr. McCann.  The motion was approved by a vote of 3-0. 

5. New Business 
None. 



Public Safety Committee  
January 6, 2014 

Page 4 of 4 

Adjournment 
At 11:05 a.m. Mr. Harkins moved to adjourn the meeting and Mr. McCann seconded.  The motion 
was approved by a vote of 3-0.   

                           Respectfully submitted: 

 
                             ______________________________ 
                            Lynn W. Buchman 

Administrative Assistant 
Approved:  2/3/2014 
 
__________________________/______  
Marc A. Grant, Chairman 


